
1 
 

 

Planning Commission Staff: 
Craig Baker, Community Development Director 
Susan Hartman, Assistant Planner 
 

Planning Commission Members: 
Ray Groom, Chair 
Anita Towslee, Vice Chair 
James Clarkson, Commissioner 
Stephanie Neumann, Commissioner 
Martin Nichols, Commissioner 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
6:00 PM – July 18, 2017 

 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a special accommodation to participate, 
please contact Community Development Director Baker, at 872-6291 ext. 111 at least 48 hours in advance of 
the meeting. Hearing assistance devices for the hearing impaired are available from the Presiding Clerk. 
Members of the public may address the Planning Commission on any agenda item, including closed session. 
If you wish to address the Planning Commission on any matter on the Agenda, it is requested that you 
complete a "Request to Address Council/Commission" card and give it to the Presiding Clerk prior to the 
beginning of the Council Meeting.  All writings or documents which are related to any item on an open 
session agenda and which are distributed to a majority of the Planning Commission within 72 hours of a 
Regular Meeting will be available for public inspection at the Town Hall in the Town Clerk or Community 
Development Services Department located at 5555 Skyway, at the time the subject writing or document is 
distributed to a majority of the subject body.  Regular business hours are Monday through Thursday from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

ROLL CALL 

1.      APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1a. Approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2017.  

2.      SWEARING IN OF RE-APPOINTED PLANNING COMMISSIONER 

 Martin Nichols 

3. ROLL CALL 

1



2 
 

4. APPOINTMENT OF PLANNING COMMISSION CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR FOR 
 THE 2017/2018 FISCAL YEAR 

a. Appointment of Chair (Secretary presiding) 
b. Appointment of Vice Chair (Appointed Chair presiding) 

 
5.  COMMUNICATION 

a.  Recent Council Actions 
b. Staff Comments 

 
6.      PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

Comments are limited to a maximum of five minutes duration.  If more time is needed, please request staff to 
place the subject on an agenda for a future Commission meeting. 

* * * PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE * * * 
A.    Staff comments                                                    C.    Close hearing to the public 
B.    Open the hearing to the public                             D.    Commission discussion 
        1.Project applicant                                               E.     Motion 
        2.Parties for the project                                        F.    Vote 
        3.Parties against the project 
        4.Rebuttals 
NOTE:  Pursuant to Planning Commission Resolution No. 96-001, any person may speak before the 
Commission regarding the matter under consideration for a maximum of five minutes unless granted 

additional time by the Chair. "In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a special 
accommodation to participate, please contact the Community Development Dept., at 872-6291 at least 48 
hours in advance of the meeting." 
 

7.      CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING 

8.      PUBLIC HEARING 

8a. Item to be determined to be exempt from environmental review 

BESS CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (PL17-00106): 
Consideration of a conditional use permit application requesting legal 
sanction for an existing +/-812 square foot second single-family residence 
on a 6.27 acre property zoned Agricultural Residential – 3 acre minimum 
(AR-3) located at 389 Wayland Road and further identified as Assessor 
Parcel Number 055-100-023. 

9.      OTHER BUSINESS 

9a. Appointment of Two Planning Commission Representatives to serve upon 
the Town of Paradise Landscape Committee (appeals body) during the FY 
2017-2018 (Requirement of PMC Chapter 15.36) 

 

10.      COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES 

 

2



3 
 

11.      COMMISSION MEMBERS 

a.  Identification of future agenda items (All Commissioners/Staff) 

12.      ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

  

3



 
 

P  L  A  N  N  I  N  G    C  O  M  M  I  S  S  I  O  N    M  I  N  U  T  E  S 
 

June 20, 2017 

6:00 PM 

 

CALL TO ORDER by Chair Groom at 6:02 p.m. who led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United 

States of America. 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: James Clarkson, Martin Nichols and Ray Groom Chair. 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Stephanie Neumann and Anita Towslee. 

1.      APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1a. MOTION by Nichols, seconded by Clarkson, approved minutes from the Regular April 18, 

2017 and Special May 10, 2017 Planning Commission meetings. Roll call vote was unanimous 

with Neumann and Towslee absent and not voting.  

2.      COMMUNICATION 

a. Recent Council Actions 

Community Development Director Baker informed the Planning Commissioners that at the June 13, 2017 Town 

Council meeting the Town Council accepted the 2016 Implementation Status Report of the 1994 Paradise 

General Plan and the 2016 Annual Report of the 1994 Paradise General Plan Housing Element forwarded from 

the Planning Commission and adopted Ordinance No. 566 regarding Marijuana regulations.  

 

b.  Staff Comments 

3.      PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - None 

4.      CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING - None 

5.      PUBLIC HEARING - None 

6.      OTHER BUSINESS 

6a.   East Ridge Estates Tentative Subdivision Map Extension (PL17-00088). Request for 

approval of a 6 year extension of time assigned to the conditionally approved East Ridge Estates 

Tentative Subdivision Map (SD-05-5); Vacant land – Summerwood Ct, AP Nos. 050-230-084 & 

085. 
4



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Page 2 

  

Community Development Director Baker provided an overview of the East Ridge Estates 

Tentative Subdivision Map that was previously approved by the Planning Commission on May 

7, 2007.  

Unfortunately, the original applicant for the subdivision is deceased and the original surveying 

and engineering firm (Sierra West Surveying) is no longer in business making it difficult to 

recover records of expenses, improvement plans and the final map.   

The Commissioners discussed the amount of effort that had been put forth to complete the 

project, the expected time of completion and how motivated the family is to complete the 

project.  

Herb Votaw, project Engineer from Rolls, Anderson & Rolls, stated that money was spent on the 

improvement plan and the records map, but it is difficult to determine the actual costs without 

receipts or documentation from the project.   

Doug Marjama, project applicant, informed the Planning Commissioners that his family is 

working on moving the project forward after the death of their father, does not know what the 

timeline for the project will actually be due to the economy and other issues out of their control.  

Mr. Marjama is confident that the project will be completed within the time allowed and 

requested the same consideration that other applicants have received regarding map extensions.  

Jim Rickards, project application, stated that the project may take some time due to the current 

construction climate and the impact of work on contractors at this time.  

Commissioners inquired about the cost to complete the parcel map. 

Herb Votaw stated that it would cost several hundred thousand dollars to complete the 

subdivision map.  

 MOTION by Clarkson, seconded by Nichols, approved on behalf of the Town of Paradise, the 

granting of a six-year time extension for assignment to the conditionally approved East Ridge 

Estates Tentative Map (SD-05-5) thereby creating a new tentative map expiration date of May 7, 

2023.  Roll call vote was unanimous with Neumann and Towslee absent and not voting.   

The decision of the Planning Commission can be appealed with 15 days to the Town Council.  

7.      COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES 

8.      COMMISSION MEMBERS 

a. Identification of future agenda items (All Commissioners/Staff) 

Community Development Director Baker updated the Commissioners on the following items/projects: Safeway 

Black/Olive Center, Starbucks, KFC, Jack in the Box, Risley Final Map, Valley Vista Subdivision, Indian Rock 

Subdivision map, Corrigan  parcel map, which is scheduled for Planning Director consideration, Lynn’s Optimo 

and Carousel Motel.  

9.      ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Groom adjourned the meeting at 6:47 

Date Approved:  
5



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Page 3 

  

 

By: ________________________ 

                   Ray Groom, Chair 
 

Attest: 

 

        _____________________________ 

         Dina Volenski, CMC, Town Clerk 
 

6



           TOWN OF PARADISE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 PLANNING STAFF REPORT 
 MEETING DATE:  July 18, 2017 
 
FROM: Susan Hartman, Assistant Planner AGENDA NO. 8(a) 
SUBJECT: Bess-Ratekin Conditional Use Permit (PL17-00106) 
DATE: June 29, 2017 AP 055-100-023 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
 Applicant:   Gary Bess & Cynthia Ratekin 
     389 Wayland Rd 
     Paradise, CA  95969 
 
 Location:   389 Wayland Rd 
 
 Requested Action:  Conditional Use Permit approval to sanction an 

unpermitted garage conversion to an 812 sq ft second 
residence on a +/-6.27 acre property. 

 
 Purpose:   To provide additional living quarters for family or as a rental 

unit. 
 
 Project Density:  N/A 
 
 Present Zoning:  Agricultural Residential–3 acre minimum (AR-3) 
 
 General Plan  
 Designation:    Agricultural Residential (AR) 
   
 Existing Land Use:  Low density residential 
 
 Surrounding  
 Land Use:   North:  Low density residential  
     East:  Low density residential 
     South:  Low density residential 
     West:  Private road / Low density residential 
 
 Parcel Size:   +6.27 acres 
 
 Environmental  
   Determination:  Categorically Exempt - CEQA Section 15303, Class 3 
 
 Other:    An appeal of the Planning Commission’s decision can be 

made within seven (7) days of the decision date. 
 
NOTE: THE APPLICANT OR A REPRESENTATIVE SHOULD BE IN ATTENDANCE 

OR THE PLANNING COMMISSION MAY NOT TAKE ACTION ON THIS 
APPLICATION 

7



SPECIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The project applicant is seeking approval from the Town of Paradise for the previous 
construction of a second dwelling unit, upstairs of a detached garage built in 2007, on a 
+/-6.27 acre parcel.  The applicant has indicated that the proposed second dwelling unit 
will serve as living quarters for family members or as a rental unit.  
 
The project site is located on the north side of Wayland Road, situated within the 
southwest corner of the Paradise community.  The site is accessed via a private access 
easement connecting to Wayland Road which is a paved public road.   Surrounding land 
use primarily consists of single-family dwellings established upon similarly-sized parcels. 
 
Other existing improvements on the property include a single-family dwelling, a detached 
two-story garage, two detached barns, an inground swimming pool, and an engineered 
on-site wastewater septic tank and sand filter.  
 
The existing engineered septic system has the required capacity for both residences.   
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
This project has been determined by planning staff to belong to a class of projects which 
are categorically exempt from environmental review, pursuant to the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA Section 15303).   
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 17.11 (Agricultural Residential Zones) of the 
Paradise Municipal Code, an approved conditional use permit is required to legally 
sanction a second single family dwelling on the project site. 
 
Comments received from reviewing agencies regarding the Bess-Ratekin conditional use 
permit project were favorable.  Accordingly, town staff is recommending Planning 
Commission approval of the project, subject to the attached list of conditions developed to 
ensure orderly development of the site. 
 
Analysis Conclusion: 
 
After a thorough and comprehensive project site evaluation, staff has concluded that the 
proposed establishment of a second single-family dwelling should not be detrimental to 
the Paradise community for the following reasons: 
 
1. The project site is large and will not appear to be cluttered or over-built; 
 
2. Land use on the project site will continue to be residential in nature; and 
 
3.  Recommended conditions of project approval will assure adequate access and fire 

protection for the site. 
 

8



 
 

If conditionally approved by the Planning Commission as recommended, this 
proposed project can be found to be consistent with the goals and land use policies of the 
Paradise General Plan.  The proposed project, if conditioned, would also be compatible 
with surrounding residential land uses. 
 
 
REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL: 
 
 
a. Find that the proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15303 (Class 3) of 
the CEQA guidelines. 

 
b. Find that the proposed project, as conditioned, is consistent with the goals and land 

use policies of the current Paradise General Plan because it involves legal sanction 
of a residential land use. 

 
c. Find that the project, as proposed and conditioned, will be compatible with 

surrounding land uses and shall not be detrimental to the public's health, safety and 
general welfare because the land use on the property will continue to be residential 
in character and no substantial changes in the character of the existing land use on 
the site are proposed or envisioned. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
Adopt the required findings as provided by staff, and approve the Bess-Ratekin 
conditional use permit application (PL17-00106) to authorize the approval of a previously 
constructed second dwelling on a +/-6.27 acre property zoned AR-3, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

 
GENERAL CONDITIONS  OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

 
 
1. If any land use for which a conditional use permit has been granted and issued is 

not established within three years of the conditional use permit’s effective date, the 
conditional use permit may become subject to revocation by the Town of Paradise. 

 
 
 CONDITIONS TO BE MET PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMIT 
 

9



 
 

SITE DEVELOPMENT 
 
2. Submit construction documents and meet the requirements of the town building 

official regarding building permits and all applicable town-adopted construction 
code regulations associated with the physical interior alterations previously 
constructed that shall create the resultant second residence not later than sixty 
(60) days beyond the legal effective date of this conditional use permit or secure a 
demolition permit to convert the structure back to the previously permitted storage 
area. Pursuant to Paradise Municipal Code Section 15.02.150, investigative fees, 
in an amount not exceed the initial price of the building permit, shall be applied to 
the total permit fees.  

 
 
SANITATION 
 
3. Submit evidence of current septic evaluations for both septic systems located on 

the property to the satisfaction of the Onsite Sanitation Division.  
 
 
OTHERS 
 
4. Pay development impact fees in accordance with Paradise Municipal Code 

requirements. 
 

CONDITIONS TO BE MET PRIOR TO ISSUANCE 
OF CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY 

 
 
SITE DEVELOPMENT 
 
5. Complete the requirements of the Fire Marshal regarding plans submittal and 

installation for an Automatic Fire Sprinkler System for the proposed second 
dwelling. 

 
6. Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings 

above the doorway, or in such a position as to be visible from the street or road 
fronting the property. 

 
UTILITIES 
 
7. Meet the requirements of Paradise Irrigation District with the installation of a 

backflow prevention assembly in accordance with the written comments dated 
June 2, 2017.  

10



 
 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS FOR BESS-RATEKIN USE PERMIT (PL17-00106) 
 
1.  Project site vicinity map 
 
2.  Notice sent to surrounding property owners and the Paradise Post for the July 

18, 2017 public hearing 
 
3.  Mailing list of property owners and agencies notified of the July 18, 2017 public 

hearing 
 
4.  Comments received from Building-Onsite Official/Fire Marshal Tony Lindsey 

dated June 15, 2017 
 
5.  Comments received from Assistant Onsite Official Bob Larson dated June 21, 

2017 
 
6.  Comments received from Paradise Irrigation District representative Neil Essila 

dated June 2, 2017  
 
7.  Comments received from Town Engineer Marc Mattox on June 12, 2017 
 
8.  Completed conditional use permit application submitted by Cynthia Ratekin on 

May 29, 2017 
 
9.  Site plan for the Bess-Ratekin conditional use permit 
 
10. CEQA Notice of Exemption document for the Bess-Ratekin project 
 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21


	Top
	1a. 07/18/17 PC APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	1a Planning Commission 06_20_2017 06_00PM Minutes.docx

	5a. 07/18/17 PC 5A BESS CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
	8a PL17-00106 Bess CUP.doc
	8a bess attachments.pdf

	6a. 7/18/17 PC Appointment of two Commissioners to the Landscape Committee
	Bottom

